
1

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

4

Annual Report 
2014/15



2

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

INDEX

Board Members           3
Staff             4

Part A: General Information
General Information           6
List of abbreviations/acronyms         6
Chairperson’s Foreword          7
Chief Executive Officer’s Overview         8
Statement of responsibility and confirmation of accuracy for the annual report   10
Strategic Overview           11
Legislative and other mandates         11
Organisational Structure          13

Part B: Performance Information
Auditor’s Report: Predetermined Objectives        15
SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS           15
Service Delivery Environment          15
Organisational Environment          15
Key Policy Developments and Legislative Changes       16
Performance Information by Programme        16
Programme 1: Licensing and Investigations        18
Programme 2: Gaming Control         18
Programme 3: Gambling Audit         25
Programme 4: Legal Services          26
Programme 5: Human Resources         28
Programme 6: Finance          30
Summary of Financial Information         34

Part C: Governance
Introduction            36
PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES          36
EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY           36
THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD        36
RISK MANAGEMENT           38
INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT          38
INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES        38
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS       39
FRAUD AND CORRUPTION          39
MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST         39
CODE OF CONDUCT           39
HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES        39
COMPANY /BOARD SECRETARY         39
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY          40
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT          40

Part D: Human Resource Management
INTRODUCTION           42
Human Resource Oversight Statistics         44

Part E: Financials
REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR         48
Financial Statements           53



3

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Board Members

Mr. T.T. Mokgoabone 
Chairperson

Mr. T. Thobeli 
Boardmember

Board members

Ms. G. Letuka 
Boardmember

Rev. C. Hendricks 
Boardmember

Mr. E.B. Andrews 
Deputy Chairperson



4

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Mr. W.A. Present 
Acting CEO 

Finance
Ms. M. Makoloi, Ms. K. Reed, Ms. S. Sehloho, 

Ms. M. Frieslaar 

Licensing
Ms. T. Sitsili, Mr. T. Goeieman

Human Resources
Ms. S. Sehloho, 

Ms. E. Nkompela. 
Mr. C. Hendricks

Secretariat
Ms. N. Francis, Mr. W.A. Present

Compliance Unit
Mr. S. Mohapi, Mr. M. Jacobs, 

Mr. T. Goeieman, Mr. W. Shebe



5

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

4

Part A: 
General 
Information



6

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Part A: General Information

PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

REGISTERED NAME:           NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD

REGISTRATION NUMBER (if applicable):      NOT APPLICABLE

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:        31 McDOUGAL STREET, MON HEIGHTS

                                            KIMBERLEY

                                           8300

POSTAL ADDRESS:      31 McDOUGAL STREET, MON HEIGHTS

                                     KIMBERLEY

                                      8300

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:     081 761 9101

FAX NUMBER:      053 832 3930

EMAIL ADDRESS:      keziahncgb@hotmail.com

WEBSITE ADDRESS:     NOT APPLICABLE

EXTERNAL AUDITORS:     AUDITOR GENERAL

BANKERS:      FIRST NATIONAL BANK

BOARD SECRETARIAT    WA PRESENT

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS
 
AGSA Auditor General of South Africa
MEC Member of Executive Council
BBBEE Broad Based Black  Economic Empowerment
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CFO Chief Financial Officer
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
TR   Treasury Regulations
MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework
SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises
SCM Supply Chain Management
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FOREWORD BY CHAIRPERSON

INTRODUCTION
It is a great honour and privilege to present the Northern Cape Gambling Boards Annual 
Report for the financial year that ended 31 March 2015.

FOREWORD
It continued to be a challenging year for the Northern Cape Gambling Board. Despite the 
numerous challenges faced by the Board like all other Boards and institutions, the Board 
managed to overcome some and remained with the vision of regulating gambling in the 
Province. 

We appointed a Chief Executive Officer who unfortunately resigned after a few months at the helm of our 
administration. We also appointed a Legal Manager, who is currently Acting Chief Executive Officer. The position 
of Driver was also filled after the resignation of the previous driver during the year. We do however hope to fill all 
funded vacant positions soon so as to enable the Board to be fully fledged. This will assist a great deal to regulate 
effectively.

We are proud to announce the opening and operating of the Third Casino after long and continued challenges. 
This will be good for the Province at large as it already contributes towards the fiscus and creating jobs, amongst 
others. Hopefully it will come with a whole lot more advantages. Two (2) Route Operators for Limited Pay-out 
Machines were appointed and we are hopeful that this will lead to increased revenue in the Province. We further 
hope to introduce more modes of gambling in the near future. We wish to do so being cognisant of the need to 
avoid the proliferation of gambling in the Province and also keeping in mind our responsibility to run awareness 
education campaigns on gambling and its disadvantages.
It remains our core responsibility to eradicate all forms of illegal gambling in collaboration with other law 
enforcement agencies.

We will at all times keep the overall mandate in mind, which is to control and regulate activities related to racing, 
gambling and wagering in the Province.

We received an unqualified audit for this financial year and we do hope to improve in terms of how we handle 
our funds to obtain a clean audit in the years to come. 

CONCLUSION
I would like to thank the MEC, Honourable John F Block for granting us the privilege, to oversee gambling within 
the Province. Furthermore, thank you for all staff members for their commitment.
Lastly, thank you to the previous Board for the time that they were here.

TT Mokgoabone
NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
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CHIEF  EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION
It is an honour and privilege to present the Northern Cape Gambling Boards Annual Financial 
Report for the financial year that ended 31 March 2015.

OVERVIEW
The 2014/2015 financial year was indeed a challenging year for the Northern Cape Gambling 
Board. All Board members resigned at the same time and were replaced shortly after that by 
a new Board.
Illegal gambling continued to spring up everywhere in the Province. The Board has continued 
to liaise with the South African Police Service in finding ways of dealing with illegal gambling within the Province 
and will continue to do same on how to eradicate illegal gambling. Upon successfully defending a High Court 
matter in the Northern Cape High Court on the return of illegal gambling machines to applicants, they took the 
matter on appeal. With the previous Board having resigned it was difficult to proceed with the Appeal matter but 
attorneys have been instructed to defend the matter in the Appeals Court.
The Board has a number of Court cases pending against it. Some have been dragging on from the previous year 
but we hope all will be finalised very soon. We operate within a very litigious industry and the Board will of course 
always respect the rights of everyone to exercise their Constitutional Rights. The Board will however regulate to 
the best of its ability taking into account the interest of Government and the Public at large.

The Board continues to operate with a lean budget and an understaffed inspectorate and finance unit, which 
is a challenging issue but we are in continuous discussions with the Department and Treasury on how we can 
overcome these challenges moving forward. They have indeed been supportive of our cause throughout.

The Board appointed and licensed two (2) Route Operators for the rolling out of the Limited Pay-out Machines 
(LPM’s). The rolling out thereof is expected to take place in the new financial year. We have received applications 
for Site Operators and we are hopeful that we will rolI out LPM’s soon. The number of Bookmaker licences that 
were issued remain at nine (9). Due to certain challenges, more Bookmaker licences could not be issued. 
Applications have been received and hopefully in the near future more Bookmakers will be licensed. The third 
casino finally became operational and opened its doors on 19 December 2014. We hope that this will increase 
revenue collection immensely moving forward.

We would like to intensify responsible gambling education and awareness campaigns as we believe it goes 
hand in hand with the introduction of new gambling modes as well as regulating the industry in general. These 
campaigns should assist with dealing with social challenges, in our families and communities at large that goes 
with gambling. We hope to have more funds set aside for such campaigns.

The Board did all the required quarterly compliance inspections at all licensed outlets as we need to ensure 
licensees comply with National as well as Provincial laws. Protection of punters remains a key objective. License 
conditions will be reviewed annually to ensure compliance with BBBEE codes at all time. 

We have again received an unqualified audit for this financial year from the Auditor General. We will work hard 
on achieving a clean audit for the coming financial year.
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The fees schedule of the different licences have remained the same for a number of years now and the Board 
will perhaps look into reviewing same. The Board will also look at reviewing other legislation and policies in the 
new financial year to come.
The Board continue to ensure that it regulates gambling in the Province effectively so and collect maximum 
revenue for the Provincial Fiscus.

CONCLUSION
On behalf of the Board I would like to thank the former Board members for their time at the NCGB. I would also like 
to thank the new Board for swiftly taking over and showing great eagerness to take the Northern Cape Gambling 
Board to the next level. Also, I would like to thank all my colleagues at the Board for their hard work, commitment 
and continued support. Lastly, I would like to thank the Department of Economic Development and Tourism 
under the leadership of Honourable John F Block for their continued support and oversight role played.

_________________
WA Present
ACTING Chief Executive Officer 
NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
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Statement of responsibility and confirmation of accuracy for the annual report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial statements 
audited by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by 
National Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards applicable 
to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the 
judgements made in this information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the 
human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources 
information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 

Chief Executive Officer (Acting)

WA Present

___________________ 

Chairperson of the Board
TT Mokgoabone
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1 Vision
	 “To	ensure	the	integrity	of	gambling	through	efficient	regulation	within	the	Northern	Cape	Province”.

6.2 Mission
	 “To	ensure	that	Gambling	activities	in	the	Northern	Cape	Province	are	conducted	with	integrity	and		
	 social	responsibility	and	to	maximize	long	term	economic	benefits	for	the	people	of	the	Northern		
	 Cape”.	

6.3 Values
The Northern Cape Gambling Board’s approach to service delivery is premised on the following values:

• Respect
• Service Excellence
• Integrity
• Professionalism
• Teamwork
• Transparency
• Loyalty
• Competence
• Independence, Objectivity and Impartiality
• Professional Secrecy, and
• Professional Development

7. LEGISLATIVE MANDATES AND ROLE OF THE BOARD:

Role of the board
The Board is a public entity which falls under Schedule 3 C of the PFMA and performs the following functions, as 
prescribed in the Northern Cape Gambling Act, 2008 as amended and the National Gambling Act of 2004:
(a)     to oversee gambling activities in the Province;

(b) to advise the MEC on any matter referred to it by the MEC relating to the control of  gambling in the 
 Province;

(c) to exercise such powers and perform such functions and duties as may be assigned to the Board in
 terms of this Act or any other law, and particular to invite applications for licenses in terms of the Act;

(i)  consider and dispose of applications for licenses in such manner and at such time and place as it

 may from time to time determine;
(ii) grant, renew, amend, refuse, suspend or revoke licenses under the Act;
(iii) impose conditions in respect of any licenses at any time;
(iv) revoke licenses granted under the Act;
(v) acquire, hold, hire, let and alienate intellectual, movable and immovable property;
(vi) appoint staff and do all things incidental thereto;
(vii) conclude and perform contracts;
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(viii) make regulations governing the licensing, conduct and operation of any gambling activity or 
 business in concurrence with the MEC;
(ix) conduct or cause to be conducted hearings, investigations and enquiries with regard to any matter
 falling within the scope of its functions;
(x) enter into agreement with or obtain the assistance of any department or organ of State, including
  the South African Police Service, to conduct or assist it in conducting its investigations;
(xii) conduct an ongoing study of, and investigation, into gambling throughout the Province and
  elsewhere to keep abreast with developments in the industry;  
(xiii) determine minimum internal control systems for license holders, including accounting and reporting
  procedures and any other procedures or systems, whether computerized or not;
(xiii) determine fees and charges in respect of investigations, inquiries and any other function performed
  by the Board;
(xiv) issue summonses for the appearance of persons or the production of books, documents or things
  in connection with applications, hearings, investigations or enquiries under this Act, including the
  rules or regulations made thereunder; 
(xv) compile a list of persons who are to be excluded or rejected from specified licensed premises and
  of those who are prohibited from partaking in specified gambling;
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Part B:  Performance Information
AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable 
assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined 
objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined 
Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to page 47 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

Service Delivery Environment

The Northern Cape Gambling Board is a juristic person established in terms of section 2 of the Northern Cape 
Gambling Act, Act 3 of 2008 and is classified as a schedule 3C Provincial Public Entity in terms of the Public 
Finance Management Act. The Board draws its existence and mandate from the provisions of the Act. 

The gambling industry contributes enormously to the different sectors of the Province. Even though gambling is 
seen as a leisure activity, it does play a positive role in terms of revenue it generates and employment it creates. 
With more gambling modes to be licenced in future, we do hope that it further contributes to the betterment of 
the province at large, socially and economically so.  

With regards to the operations of the Board the following were achieved:
Draft reviewed operations license conditions were drafted for approval of the Board.
All quarterly inspections at Licensees were done.
Internal Audit functions have been implemented.
Inspectorate Unit continued to embark on illegal gambling investigations and engaging South African Police 
Service (SAPS).
Two (2)Route Operators were appointed for the rolling out of Limited Pay-out Machines (LPM’s).
The Third (3rd) Casino opened for operations.

Organisational Environment

The Board appointed the Legal Manager and Chief Executive Officer (CEO). However, the Chief Executive Officer 
served two (2) months’ notice and resigned end of March 2015. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) also resigned 
but was replaced shortly thereafter by a new CFO. Obviously when there is an acting individual in a position, it 
does create uncertainty in any organisation and we hope that the Board will deal with such uncertainty soon.
In terms of the workforce, the approved organogram consists of 51 employees but only 14 positions are filled thus 
far. The Board might consider relooking at the current approved organogram moving forward. This will be to see 
if there are positions that can be removed from the current Organogram. Other positions could not be filled due 
to budgetary constraints. The Board will continue to engage the Department of Economic Development and 

Tourism as well as Provincial Treasury to find ways on how we can overcome these challenges.  
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Key policy developments and legislative changes

A draft review of the Act was submitted to the Department of Economic Development and Tourism. The process 
to review the Regulations to the Act and the Levies Act and its Regulations are also underway. 

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME 

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS:

PROGRAMME 1: INVESTIGATIONS AND LICENSING

Performance indicator 

Actual achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

1.1

Implementation 
of procedure 
manual

Procedure manuals 
were drafted and 
not implemented

Implementation 
and monitoring 
of procedure 
manual Not Done

Now that Route 
operators are 
licensed and 
Site Operators 
have lodged 
their applications, 
procedure manual 
will be drafted to 
include LPMs.

Procedures 
manual will be 
taken to the 
Board for ap-
proval

1.2
Licensing of LPM 
operators

LPM’s were not 
been rolled out 
during the period 
under review

Roll-out of the First 
Phase

Two (2) Route 
Operators were 
licenced. Site 
operators’ 
applications 
received.

Probity 
Investigations done 
on Site Operator 
applications.

Applications 
will be taken to 
the Board for 
consideration.

1.3

Effective 
enforcement 
of conditions of 
license in relation 
to BEE

The following 
licensees license 
conditions were in-
vestigated for com-
pliance with the 
requirements of the 
BBBEE Act: Flamingo 
Casino, Desert Pal-
ace Casino, Betting 
World, Phumelela 
Gaming

Conduct 
four quarterly 
compliance 
audits Not done

BBBEE codes intro-
duced in May 2015.

Enforcement 
of conditions 
of licence in 
relation to 
BBBEE will be 
conducted 
in the new 
financial year

1.4

Registered 
gambling related 
service providers 
in a database 
(Third party)

A Certificate of 
Suitability was 
awarded to Betting 
World.

Quarterly submit 
reports to the 
Board for con-
sideration and 
approval

Two (2) 
certificates 
of suitability 
applications 
received. 
Investigations 
completed and 
waiting for Board 
consideration None N/A
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Performance indicator 

Actual achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

1.5

Registered gam-
bling and key 
employees in a 
database 

86 Permanent 
registration (100% 
of applications 
received) of key 
and gambling 
employees.
105 temporary 
registration (100% 
of temporary 
applications 
received) of key 
and gambling 
employees

Quarterly 
submit reports 
to the Board for 
consideration 
and approval.

One hundred 
and ninety six 
(196) employee 
certificate 
applications 
received and 
issued None N/A

1.6

Monitoring of 
suitability of all 
licensees

Two Casino Licenses 
were renewed 
(Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
) and Three (3) 
license conditions 
reviewed (Flamingo 
Casino, Desert 
Palace, Leitlho 
Casino and Resort) 

Conduct four 
quarterly compli-
ance audits to 
monitor licensees

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert 
Palace Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

1.7

Monitoring of suit-
ability of service 
provider

Three Casinos’ 
licence conditions 
reviewed, namely 
Flamingo Casino, 
Desert palace and 
Leitlho Casino.

Third party licence 
conditions drafted

Compliance 
with Codes of 
Good Practice 
Procurement 
requirements and 
BBBEE Act Not Done

BBBEE codes only 
promulgated in 
May 2015

The monitoring 
of continuous 
suitability will 
be conducted 
in the new 
financial year.
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Performance indicator 

Actual achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

1.8

Appoint fifteen  
(15) Bookmakers 
in Province

Nine (9) Bookmaker 
Licences issued

Investigate 
applications 
received and 
issue licences

Received 
applications 
for Bookmaker 
licences and 
advertised in the 
local newspaper 
as well as the 
Provincial 
Government 
Gazette

Investigations 
on applications 
completed

Applications 
will be taken to 
the Board for 
consideration. 

1.9

Certification of 
third casino ope-
rations

Certification and 
renewal of the 
third casino 

This was done 
in December 
2014. Casino 
was opened on 
December 15th 

None N/A

PROGRAMME 2: GAMBLING CONTROL

Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.1

Introduction 
of regulatory 
manuals for 
the Gambling 
Control 
Division

The procedure 
manual has not 
been reviewed 
and updated 
to include other 
forms of gambling 
during the 
financial period 
under review

Approval and im-
plementation of a 
Regulatory Manual 
for the Gaming 
Control Division

No new Business 
Strategy 
document has 
been introduced, 
developed and 
implemented

Document 
halted and 
awaiting 
introduction 
of LPMs and 
other Gambling 
Modes

Business 
Strategy will be 
implemented 
when other 
gambling modes 
are introduced

2.2

Ensure 
compliance 
with act, 
rules and 
Regulation by 
all licensees in 
the Province

408 machines 
were inspected 
during quarterly 
audits at Flamingo 
Casino and Desert 
Palace Resort

100% inspection  
of all gambling 
equipment in 
all licensed 
establishments

100% inspection  
of all gambling 
equipment in 
all licensed 
establishments 
conducted

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A



19

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.2.(a)
100% verification of 
all jackpots 

100% of all jackpots 
verified

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

2.2(b)

Machines 
changes: 387 
machine changes 
were inspected at 
Flamingo Casino, 
6 machines 
changes were 
inspected at 
Desert Palace 
casino’s as per 
requests from 
Casino’s 
Table Changes: 
2 table changes 
were inspected 
at Flamingo 
Casino as per 
request from the 
operators

100% inspection 
and approval 
of all gambling 
machine changes,  
table movements 
and table layout 
changes

100% of all 
gambling machine 
changes , table 
movements and 
table layout 
changes inspected 
and approved None N/A

2.2(c)

785 machines (per 
request received) 
were approved 
for transportation 
as follows:

17 machines into 
the province

768 machines 
through the 
Province

7908 gambling 
spare parts (as 
per requests) 
were approved 
for transportation:
232 into the 
province and 
7676 through the 
province 

100% evaluation 
of all gambling 
equipment 
movement requests

100% of all 
gambling 
equipment 
movement 
requests evaluated

Sixty five (65) 
requests to 
approve nine 
hundred and 
eighty seven (987) 
transportation 
of gambling 
equipment None N/A
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Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.2(d)

22 LOC’s (100% of 
LOC’s received) 
were evaluated 
and approved

100% evaluation 
and approval or 
declination of all 
request of licensees

100% all request 
of licensees 
approved

24 requests 
received to 
approve 125 LOCs None N/A

2.2(e)

Eight (8) (100% of 
requests received) 
casino gambling 
promotions 
approved

100% inspections 
of all approved 
Promotions and 
Advertising 
materials of 
licensees

100% inspections 
of all approved 
Promotions and 
Advertising 
materials of 
licensees

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

2.2(f)

Surveillance 
systems were 
inspected 
during quarterly 
inspections 
at Flamingo 
Casino and 
Desert Palace 
Resort, any non-
compliance 
in respect of 
surveillance 
systems are 
reported in the 
compliance 
reports issued 
when the audit is 
concluded

100% inspection of 
surveillance narra-
tive, floor plan and 
matrix room

100% of 
surveillance 
narrative, floor plan 
and matrix room 
inspected

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A



21

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.2(g)

Surveillance 
systems were 
inspected 
during quarterly 
inspections 
at Flamingo 
Casino and 
Desert Palace 
Resort, any non-
compliance 
in respect of 
surveillance 
systems are 
reported in the 
compliance 
reports issued 
when the audit is 
concluded

100% inspection 
of surveillance’s 
operational and 
administrative func-
tions

100% of 
surveillance’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions inspected

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

2.2(h)

100% inspections 
of security’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions

100% of security’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions inspected

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly
 inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

2.2(i)

100% inspections of 
slots department 
operational, 
administrative, 
technical and 
statistical functions

100% of slots 
department 
operational, 
administrative, 
technical and 
statistical functions 
inspected

Betting World’s 
license was 
revoked by 
the Board in 
September 
2014 and Score 
Bet started to 
operating in 
July 2014 N/A
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Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.2(j)

100% inspection 
of casino tables 
department’s 
operational, 
administrative and 
statistical functions 
(casino’s only)

100% of 
casino tables 
department’s 
operational, 
administrative and 
statistical functions 
inspected (casino’s 
only)

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

2.2(k)

100% inspection 
of cash desk 
department’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions (casino’s 
only)

100% of cash desk 
department’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions inspected 
(casino’s only)

Four (4) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Flamingo Casino 
and Desert Palace 
Casino.
Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Grand Oasis 
Casino None N/A

2.2(l)

100% inspections 
on totes and 
bookmakers 
monitoring systems, 
operations and 
administrative 
functions

100% on totes 
and bookmakers 
monitoring systems, 
operations and 
administrative 
functions inspected

Two (2) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Betting World.

Three (3) quarterly 
inspections 
conducted at 
Score Bet

Betting World’s 
licence was 
revoked by 
the Board in 
September 
2014 and Score 
Bet started 
operating in 
July 2014. N/A
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Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.2(m)

Received three 
(3) punter 
disputes, 
investigated and 
resolved

Ensure fair and 
rational resolution 
of disputes 
between punters 
and licensees

Two (2) punter dis-
putes were report-
ed and resolved None N/A

2.3

Monitor, 
investigate 
and report 
on all illegal 
gambling 
activities in 
the Province

Identified and 
investigated three 
(3) illegal casinos

Two (2) illegal 
casinos were 
raided and closed 
down, One 
(1) is still under 
investigation by 
SAPS

96 illegal 
machines 
confiscated

Investigation of 
all identified and 
reported illegal 
gambling activities 
in the Province

Illegal gambling 
sites identified but 
no raids conduct-
ed

The Province 
is littered with 
interactive 
gambling 
mostly and that 
has proved 
difficult to raid. 
The issue has 
been raised 
with SAPS 
provincially 
and Organised 
Crime was 
tasked with 
investigating 
interactive 
gambling.

The Board 
however 
continues, 
through its 
inspectorate to 
investigate and 
try to find new 
ways of dealing 
with interactive 
gambling.

The Board will 
continue to find 
ways to deal with 
illegal gambling

2.3(a)

Liaise with 
and bring on 
board SAPS 
Specialised 
Units, SARS, 
NPA and FIC

Co-ordinate and 
arrange to have 
all stakeholders in-
volved in raids and 
post raid processes

No raids conduct-
ed

The Province 
is littered with 
interactive 
gambling 
mostly and that 
has proved diffi-
cult to raid. The 
issue has been 
raised SAPS pro-
vincially and Or-
ganised Crime 
was tasked 
with investigat-
ing interactive 
gambling.

The Board how-
ever continues, 
through its 
inspectorate to 
investigate and 
try to find new 
ways of dealing 
with interactive 
gambling.

The Board will 
continue to find 
ways to deal with 
illegal gambling
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Performance indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

2.3(b)

Interception 
and auditing 
of all “in tran-
sit” gambling 
equipment 
in or passing 
through the 
Province

25% Interception 
and auditing of all 
“in transit” gam-
bling equipment in 
or passing through 
the Province Not achieved

The interception 
is purported to 
ensure that only 
the number 
of gambling 
equipment or 
machines ap-
proved to be 
transported is 
indeed trans-
ported. 

This verifica-
tion involves 
an inspector 
stopping and 
searching the 
trucks used to 
transport gam-
bling equip-
ment and ma-
chines to ensure 
conformity with 
the approval 
given.
The spade of 
hijackings make 
it difficult for the 
achievement of 
this as licen-
sees indicate 
that drivers are 
sceptical to 
stop for search-
es as they are 
not sure if its 
indeed the 
officials of the 
Board stopping 
them. N/A

2.4

Introduction 
of responsible 
gambling pro-
grammes

Continuous imple-
mentation of Re-
sponsible Gambling 
Programmes Not done

Budgetary con-
straints

Will look into 
employing ways 
of achieving this 
objective with-
out necessarily 
spending money.
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PROGRAMME 3: GAMBLING AUDIT

Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual achieve-
ment 2014/15

Deviation from target 
to actual for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

3.1

Review Gam-
bling Revenue 
Audits Con-
ducted

Operators revenue 
verifications

Two (2) quarterly 
inspections done 
at all licensed 
operators

This function used to 
rest with the DEDaT. It 
has since from Oc-
tober 2014 been the 
Board’s competency; 
hence only two (2) 
audits were con-
ducted. N/A

3.1(a)

Gather and 
compile Statisti-
cal Analysis of 
Monthly Gam-
ing Revenue 
Performance

Review Gambling 
Revenue Perfor-
mance

Two (2) quarterly 
inspections done 
at all licensed 
operators

This function used to 
rest with the DEDaT. It 
has since from Oc-
tober 2014 been the 
Board’s competency; 
hence only two (2) 
audits were con-
ducted. N/A

3.2

Review compli-
ance audits 
of all licensed 
operators

Review three casi-
no, one bookmaker 
and one totalisator 
compliance audits

All compliance 
audits were re-
viewed. None N/A

3.3.

Conduct 
reviews of 
Internal Control 
Procedures for 
amendments 
and approval

Review Internal 
Control Procedures 
of Casino’s 

Flamingo Casino, 
Grand Oasis Ca-
sino and Desert 
Palace Casino 
have submitted 
amendments 
to their ICSs 
and those were 
reviewed and 
are awaiting ap-
proval from the 
Board. None N/A

3.4
Review Casino’s 
Annual Audits

Review of annual 
audits of Operators Not done

This will be done when 
the annual licence 
renewal process com-
mence.

This process was sup-
posed to have been 
concluded. Only the 
Board can conclude 
the process. N/A
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PROGRAMME 4: LEGAL SERVICES

Performance 
indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to 
actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

4.1

Advise the Board 
and manage-
ment on all legal 
matters

Legal Manager 
resigned dur-
ing last quarter 
of 2013/2014

To ensure that the 
Board complies with 
all administrative 
legislation and act 
within its legislative 
framework

Legal advice 
provided to the 
Board at quarterly 
and special Board 
meetings as and 
when required. 
Legal advice also 
provided to man-
agement as and 
when required. None n/a

4.1(a)

To ensure that 
licence con-
ditions are in 
compliance with 
the legislative 
framework None

Annual review of 
licence conditions 
of all operators None

Draft license 
conditions final-
ised 

To engage 
license conditions 
with licensees 
in first quarter of 
new financial 
year.

4.1(b)

Perform status 
review, progress 
in litigation mat-
ters against the 
Board

Reported to 
the Board on 
litigation at 
Board meet-
ings quarterly. 

Facilitate all litiga-
tion against the 
Board

Report on status of 
litigation against 
and by the Board 
on a quarterly 
basis. To date four 
(4) cases against 
the Board of which 
two (2) are at an 
appeal stage None n/a

4.1(c)
Review all Board 
documentation

The SLA of ex-
ternal service 
providers for 
LPM probity 
investigations 
were reviewed

Review, draft new 
and existing con-
tracts with third 
parties

Reviewed all Board 
documentation 
and contracts as 
and when required. None n/a 

4.2

Co-ordinate 
Board and 
sub-committee 
meetings

Eighteen (18) 
Board meet-
ings and (9) 
committee 
meetings were 
held.

One Board Meeting 
and three Commit-
tee Meetings held 
each quarter

Twelve (12) meet-
ings were held 
which are as fol-
lows:
Two (2) scheduled 
Board meetings
Six (6) Special 
Board meetings
One (1) Finance 
and IT meeting

Two (2) Audit Com-
mittee meetings
One (1) Human 
Capital Committee 
meeting.

Two(2)quarterly 
Board meetings 

Three(3)finance 
and IT meetings
Two(2)Audit 
Committee 
meetings
Three(3)Human 
Capital Commit-
tee meeting

Board resigned 
during the third 
quarter
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Performance 
indicator 

Actual 
achievement 
2013/14 Annual target 

2014/15

Actual 
achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to 
actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

4.2(a)

Co-ordinate 
enquiries and, 
Hearings pro-
ceedings relat-
ing to licensees

One (1) hear-
ing held
One (1) 
enforcement 
enquiry held
Two (2) sum-
mons drafted
Five (5) Public 
hearings held 
iro LPM’s

Processes and hear-
ings to be in com-
pliance with the 
NCGB Act

No hearings were 
held

As and when 
required n/a

4.3

Draft, review 
and amend 
legislation ap-
plicable to the 
Board

One (1) review 
of Regula-
tors were 
performed, 
amendments 
were received 
and submitted 
to department.

Appropriate legisla-
tive instruments that 
are in alignment 
with National Norms 
and Standards

A draft of the 
proposed amend-
ments was submit-
ted to the Depart-
ment. Amendments 
of the Regulations 
are on-going. None n/a

4.3(a)

To keep the 
Board abreast 
of all legislative 
changes and 
updates

To represent the 
Board at all legal 
fora meetings and 
provide legal up-
dates on a quarterly 
basis

Attended one (1) 
FICA Enforcement 
Forum (FEF) meet-
ing. 

Attend FICA and 
LCF meetings as 
when requested 
by National.

Some meetings 
could not sit as 
planned due to 
lack of a quorum.

4.4

Implementation 
and monitoring 
of Principles of 
Good Corporate 
Governance

Co-ordinate 
board meet-
ings in order 
to ensure a 
proper quorum 
and resolutions 
taken.
Board resolu-
tions were 
drafted and 
submitted 
to the Chair-
person for 
signature after 
approval at 
Board meeting

Quarterly review of 
Adherence by the 
Board and Manage-
ment with Corpo-
rate Governance 
Principles

Co-ordinate Board 
meetings in order to 
ensure that proper 
quorum reached 
and resolutions are 
taken.
Board resolutions 
were drafted and 
submitted to the 
Chairperson for 
signature after 
approval at Board 
meeting. None n/a

4.5

Facilitation 
of Corporate 
Relations with all 
stakeholders

Corporate Re-
lations Strategy

Corporate Relations 
Strategy

Performance indi-
cator removed None n/a

4.6

To comply with 
the Risk Man-
agement Plan 
and policy None  n/a

Quarterly Risk Man-
agement meetings

Performance indi-
cator removed None n/a
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PROGRAMME 5: HUMAN RESOURCES

 Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Annual 
target 2014/15

Actual achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

5.1

Facilitate the 
placement of 
staff

Only one (1)
position of a 
cleaner could 
be filled during 
the financial 
period under 
review  

One (1) resig-
nation letter 
received

Fill vacancies as 
per approved 
budget

Filled five (5) vacant 
positions:

CEO - Jul 14
Legal Manager - Jul14
Inspector-Oct 14
 CFO-Nov-14
Driver - Nov 14 

Two(2) resignations 
letters submitted in 
August 2014:
1xCFO, 
1xDriver

One(1)resignation  
letter submitted in 
March 2015:
1 x CEO

Not all vacant 
vacancies could 
be filled due to 
budget constraints

Personnel 
Budget to be 
increased 
to fill the 
most critical 
positions.  The 
Board has 
presently 
seventeen 
(17) unfunded 
and vacant 
positions.

5.1(a)

Facilitate and 
administer 
annual salary 
reviews and 
employee 
benefits – 
including leave

Provident 
fund and risk 
implemented.

Annual cost 
of living Salary 
increase 
implemented.  

Employees ‘ 
salaries and 
benefits to be 
market related

Annual cost of living 
salary increase 
implemented.

Two (2) Salary 
adjustment 
implemented

Two (2) Corrective 
salary decrease 
implemented

Medical aid 
allowance  granted to 
employees who have 
existing medical aid 
(2.5% Gross income)

Housing allowance 
still outstanding the 
matter referred to 
the Board for further 
discussion and 
deliberation.

Personnel Budget 
constraints 

Increased 
Personnel 
Budget to 
ensure that 
employees’ 
salaries and 
benefits 
are market 
related

5.1(b)

Provision of 
Labour relations 
support and 
advice

One (1) 
counselling/
verbal warning 
occurred during 
the financial 
period under 
review

Labour related 
Legal opinions, 
fair procedures 
and accurate 
record keeping 
of reported 
incidences

One(1) corrective/
verbal action applied 
in quarter 2

One(1) corrective/
verbal warning action 
applied in quarter 3

Three (3) grievances 
submitted and 
resolved in quarter 4

As and when re-
quired N/A
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 Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Annual 
target 2014/15

Actual achievement 
2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual for 
2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

5.2(a)
Facilitate training 
needs

Six (6) 
employees 
received 
training as 
follows: 

Five(5) Gaming 
Control 
Inspectors

One (1) Human 
Resource official

Staff 
training and 
development 
as per the 
Individual 
Development 
Plan

Annual training plans 
drafted for submission

SDF online registration 
with PSETA is complete 
for submission of 
2015/2016. Workplace 
Skills Plan and the 
Annual Training 
Report will be 
done on line using 
the management 
information system 
when the system 
re-opens for the 
stakeholders. 

Skills development 
training for staff 
could not be 
provided due 
to budgetary 
constraints

The Board 
does not 
have sufficient 
budget for 
personal & 
professional 
development 

5.2(b)

Manage the 
Performance 
Management 
System

Performance 
evaluations 
completed 
were for Quar-
ter 1,2, and 3 

Review the Per-
formance Man-
agement System 
for Board’s ap-
proval

Job descriptions 
amended.

Job evaluation Pre-
interviews conducted 
to 20 posts including 
the benchmarked 
positions

Job evaluation 
completed. The 
Recommendation 
of the job 
evaluation will 
remain at the 
Office of the 
Premier until the 
Board has been 
appointed.

Review when 
necessary

Review Human 
Resource Policy

The Human 
Resource Plan 
drafted and ap-
proved by the 
Human Capital 
Committee.

Human Re-
source to be in 
line with appli-
cable legislation

Review the policy an-
nually and monitoring 
compliance continu-
ously

Standard  operating 
procedures for Human 
Resource Manage-
ment  drafted and ap-
proved by the CEO: 
Application of Recruit-
ment Practices
Leave Management 
and Administration
Process of Transferring 
and Terminating
Incapacity Leave and 
III Health Retirement 
(PILIR)
Procedure to be fol-
lowed for misconduct None

Review when 
necessary
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PROGRAMME 6: FINANCE 

Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Annual target 
2014/15

Actual 
achievement 2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

6.1

Monitoring Of 
the implemen-
tation of the 
NCGB Busi-
ness Strategy 
against Budget

12 Financial 
status reports

12 Financial status re-
ports prepared by the 
15th of each month.

General Ledger, Trial 
Balance, Suppliers 
Ledger and Customer 
Ledger updated 
with information from 
Aug2014-Feb2015.

IYM of budget against 
actual from Apr2014-
Nov2015 done and 
submitted by 19 De-
cember 2014 to DEdat 
and NCPT.

Three letters of addi-
tional budget request 
sent on 19 December 
2014 to DEDaT and 
NCPT regarding the 
14/15 budget alloca-
tion.

IYM of budget against 
actual :
April2014-Dec2014 
submitted 23 January 
2015 to DEDaT and 
NCPT.
Apr2014–Jan2015 sub-
mitted 6Feb2015.
April2014 –Feb20105 
submitted 2 April2015.

None

March 2015

Monthly IYM re-
ports for Apr2014 
– Oct2014

Projected over-
spending

March 2015

n/a

Required to be 
done by the 
15th April 2015

CFO vacancy 
filled late in No-
vember 2014

Possible fruitless 
and wasteful 
expenditure 
which caused 
overspending 
disclosed in 
14/15 AFS

Required to be 
done by the 
15th April 2015

6.2
Cash Manage-
ment

Budget for next 
financial period

Completed 17 March 
2015 None n/a

6.3
Bank reconcili-
ations

Twelve (12) Bank 
reconciliations

12 Monthly bank rec-
onciliations performed 
for each month. None n/a

6.4

Collection and 
reconciliation 
of application 
fees

12 Financial 
status reports 

Done.
Reconciliation of 
probity income and 
expenditure com-
plete from Apr2014-
Feb2015.

March 2015

Done by the 
15th April 2015 
as required.

6.5

Collection and 
reconciliation 
of all other 
fees due to the 
Board

12 Financial 
status reports

Done.
Classification of pro-
bity vs application/
renewal fees from 
Apr2014-Feb2015 
complete. March 2015

Done by the 
15th April 2015 
as required.
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Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Annual target 
2014/15

Actual 
achievement 2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

6.6a

Facilitate the 
internal and 
external audit 
process

One annual 
external audit,
Quarterly Inter-
nal Audit

Facilitated the exter-
nal audit with AGSA 
for year ended 13/14. 
Financially unqualified 
Audit Report issued 31 
July 2014.

Internal audits execu-
tion completed :
Review of draft 13/14 
Annual Financial 
Statements 
(quarter 1)

Performance Informa-
tion
(quarters 1-4)

Risk management
(quarter 4)

Fraud risk manage-
ment
(quarter 2)

Revenue
(quarters 2-4)
Supply Chain Man-
agement
(quarters 1, 3, 4)

Information Technol-
ogy Governance 
Framework
(quarter 1)

Audit and Compli-
ance Services
(quarter 3)

None

Internal audit re-
ports in progress:

Performance 
Information
(quarters 2-4

Risk management
(quarter 4)

none

Revenue
(quarters 3-4)
Supply Chain 
Management
(quarter 4)

None

Audit and Com-
pliance Services
(quarter 3)

Internal audits 
commenced 
late in the year 
due to late filling 
of CFO vacancy 
in November 
2014.

6.6b

Compile and 
approve the 
Annual Financial 
Statements for 
the year ended 
31 March 2014

Submitted approved 
AFS for the year 
ended 31 March 2014 
to AGSA by 31 May 
2014. None n/a

6.7

Implement 
recommenda-
tions of Internal 
Audit

All IA recom-
mendations 
should be im-
plemented and 
reported on by 
the CFO’s office Not done Not done

Office of the 
CFO will com-
pile report on 
implementation 
of internal audit 
recommen-
dations after 
finalisation of 
all outstanding 
internal audit 
reports.
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Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Annual target 
2014/15

Actual 
achievement 2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

6.8

Monitoring of 
full compli-
ance with 
NCGB’s ICP 
and other rel-
evant legisla-
tion

4 Compliance 
evaluation re-
ports

All policies and pro-
cedures have been 
reviewed that forms 
part of IC.

2 Bi-annual PFMA 
compliance checklists 
completed and sub-
mitted to DEDaT.

Continuous monitor-
ing of payments for 
purchases of goods 
and services as 
identified by various 
departments PFMA, 
TR, PPPFA, National 
and Provincial Gam-
bling Acts and all their 
regulations.

Irregular expenditure 
register of pay-
ments completed to 
Feb2015.

None

March 2015

n/a

Done by the 
15th April 2015 
as required.

6.9
Governance 
of Entity’s Risk

Internal audit report 
on risk management
(quarter 1)

1 Risk management 
workshop held
(quarter 2)

Risk committee 
quarterly meet-
ings
(quarter 3-4)

Board resigned 
on 10 November 
2015.
New Board will 
appoint risk 
management 
committee at 
their first adminis-
trative meeting.

6.10

Facilitate the 
demand and 
acquisition of 
goods and 
services

Compliance 
with National 
Treasury Regula-
tions, PFMA and 
PPPFA 

Continuous monitor-
ing of purchases of 
goods and services as 
identified by various 
departments.

Continuous procure-
ment of goods and 
services by depart-
ments in order of 
priority as and when is 
required.

SCM policy updated 
by CFO, reviewed by 
CEO, will be pre-
sented to new Board 
for approval at first 
administrative board 
meeting.

SCM office meeting 
held on 11 March 
2015 as per updated 
audit action plan

None

None

None

n/a

n/a

n/a
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Performance 
indicator 

Actual achieve-
ment 2013/14

Annual target 
2014/15

Actual 
achievement 2014/15

Deviation from 
target to actual 
for 2014/15

Comment on 
deviations

6.12

Dispose of 
obsolete and 
reduced assets

Ensure compli-
ance with asset 
management 
policy require-
ment None

Obsolete and re-
duced assets not 
yet disposed of

Will be done 
after completion 
of external audit 
on fixed assets

6.13a

Ensure proper 
asset manage-
ment

2 status reports 
on asset verifica-
tion 

3 status reports on as-
set verification:
28 November 2014
26 January 2015
31 March 2015 None n/a

6.13b
Reviewed insur-
ance policy None Not done

Done 22 April 
2015

6.14

Establish a 
database of 
suppliers and 
service provid-
ers

Suppliers and 
service provid-
ers comply with 
all Supply Chain 
Management 
requirements

Supplier database 
updated, new docu-
mentation requested 
from already regis-
tered suppliers during 
by January 2015.

Supplier database 
continuously updated 
as new suppliers are 
used.

Invitation for listing on 
NCGB supplier data-
base advertised on 11 
March 2015 in: 
DFA, 
Volksblad and 
WorkPlace Print.
Numerous applica-
tions received by due 
date of 31 March 
2015. NCGB Supplier 
database updated  
accordingly.

6.15

Ensure mainte-
nance of Pas-
tel Accounting 
and Pastel 
Payroll

Effective and ef-
ficient account-
ing and payroll 
system

Pastel Payroll updated 
on monthly basis for 
Apr 2014 – Mar 2015 
by HR and reviewed 
by office of the CFO.

Pastel Accounting 
updated on monthly 
basis by office of the 
CFO.

None

March 2015

n/a

Done by 15 April 
2015 as required.

6.17
Software 
licenses

Updating opera-
tor systems

Pastel Payroll and 
Pastel Accounting li-
censes were renewed 
during quarter 1 and 
2. None n/a

6.18

Ensure informa-
tion technolo-
gy systems are 
up to date

Mitigation meas-
ures to deal with 
virus attacks

Kaspersky Anti-virus 
installed on all laptops 
by 16 February 2015 None n/a
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Summary Of Financial Information
5 REVENUE COLLECTION

Annual license fees due to DEDaT R1 443 227.00

5.1 Capital investment 
No capital investments were made by the NCGB for the financial period under review
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Part C: 
Governance
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Part C: Governance
INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and 
held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s  enabling legislation, and the 
Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the 
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained in the King’s Report on 
Corporate Governance.

Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate 
governance.

           

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES (if applicable) 

Not applicable

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

All reports have been submitted to the Executive Authority as per legislative deadlines

THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD 

Introduction

The Board is the Accounting Authority of the Northern Cape Gambling Board;

The Board is responsible and accountable for the public entity’s performance and strategic direction. 

The role of the Board is as follows:
The Board performs the following functions, as prescribed in the Northern Cape Gambling Act, 2008 as amended 
and the National Gambling Act of 2004:
(a) to oversee gambling activities in the Province;
(b) to advise the MEC on any matter referred to it by the MEC relating to the control of gambling in the 
Province;
(c) to exercise such powers and perform such functions and duties as may be assigned to the Board in terms 
of this Act or any other law, and particular to invite applications for licenses in terms of the Act;
consider and dispose of applications for licenses in such manner and at such time and place as it may from time 
to time determine;
grant, renew, amend, refuse, suspend or revoke licenses under the Act;
impose conditions in respect of any licenses at any time;
revoke licenses granted under the Act;
acquire, hold, hire, let and alienate intellectual, movable and immovable property;
appoint staff and do all things incidental thereto;
conclude and perform contracts;
make regulations governing the licensing, conduct and operation of any gambling activity or business in 
concurrence with the MEC;



37

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

conduct or cause to be conducted hearings, investigations and enquiries with regard to any matter falling within 
the scope of its functions;
enter into agreement with or obtain the assistance of any department or organ of State, including the South 
African Police Service, to conduct or assist it in conducting its investigations;
conduct an ongoing study of, and investigation, into gambling throughout the Province and elsewhere to keep 
abreast with developments in the industry;  
determine minimum internal control systems for license holders, including accounting and reporting procedures 
and any other procedures or systems, whether computerized or not;
determine fees and charges in respect of investigations, inquiries and any other function performed by the Board;
issue summonses for the appearance of persons or the production of books, documents or things in connection 
with applications, hearings, investigations or enquiries under this Act, including the rules or regulations made 
thereunder; 
compile a list of persons who are to be excluded or rejected from specified licensed premises and of those who 
are prohibited from partaking in specified gambling;

Board Charter

No commentary can be made on the above, no progress were made on compiling a charter for the Board

Composition of the Board 

Name

Designation 
(in terms of 
the Public 
Entity Board 
structure)

Date ap-
pointed

Date 
re-
signed Qualifications

Area of 
Expertise

Board
Directorships 
(List the entities)

Other Com-
mittees or 
Task Teams  
(e.g: Audit 
committee 
/ Ministerial 
task team)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

ABEL 
VUMILE 
MJILA

CHAIRPER-
SON

01 JUNE 
2013

10 Nov 
2014 LAW LAW

UNKNOWN, AP-
POINTED BY THE 
RESPONSIBLE 
MEC NONE

2 Board 
meetings, 5 
Special meet-
ings

ROWENA 
APRIL

DEPUTY 
CHAIRPER-
SON

01 JUNE 
2013

10 Nov 
2014

BA, Higher 
Diploma in 
Education Teaching

UNKNOWN, AP-
POINTED BY THE 
RESPONSIBLE 
MEC

MEMBER: HC 
COMMITTEE

1 Board 
meeting, 3 
Special meet-
ing

C OGU MEMBER
01 JUNE 
2013

10 Nov 
2014

CA (SA), MAS-
TERS IN BUSI-
NESS ADMINIS-
TRATION

ACC, AUDIT-
ING, IC, 
GOVERN-
ANCE

UNKNOWN, AP-
POINTED BY THE 
RESPONSIBLE 
MEC

CHAIRPER-
SON: AUDIT 
COMMITTEE,
MEMBER: 
FINANCE 
COMMITTEE

2 Board 
meetings, 5 
Special board 
meetings

I 
JANUARIE MEMBER

01 JUNE 
2013

10 Nov 
2014

UNKNOWN, 
APPOINTED BY 
THE RESPONBILE 
MEC

CHAIR-
PERSON: 
FINANCE 
COMMITTEE, 
MEMBER: HC 
COMMITTEE

1 Board 
meeting, 5 
special board 
meetings

P OLYN MEMBER
01 JUNE 
2013

10 Nov 
2014

Municipal 
Finance Certifi-
cate, Financial 
Management 
Certificate

Municipal 
Finance

UNKNOWN, AP-
POINTED BY THE 
RESPONSIBLE 
MEC

CHAIRPER-
SON: HC 
COMMITTEE,
MEMBER: 
FINANCE 
COMMITTEE,
MEMBER: 
AUDIT COM-
MITTEE

2 Board 
meetings, 5 
special meet-
ings
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Committees 

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members
AUDIT COMMITTEE 2 3 C OGU, P OLYN & K PACKIRISAMY
FINANCE COMMITTEE 1 3 I JANUARIE, C OGU & P OLYN
HUMAN CAPITAL COMMITTEE 1 3 P OLYN, I JANUARIE & R APRIL

Remuneration of board members

Board sitting fees are determined by the Department of Economic Development and Tourism and are gazetted 

annually

Name Remuneration Other allowance Other re-imbursements Total
A A MJILA ILJ 73 810.00 20 295.00 94 105.00
AR APRIL 43 000.00   2 536.00 45 536.00
C OGU 55 848.00 15 300.00 71 148.00
II JANUARIE 58 100.00 37 730.00 95 830.00
P OLYN 80 325.00 40 190.00 120 515.00

427 134.00

RISK MANAGEMENT
The public entity has a risk management policy and strategy (draft).
The public entity conducted a risk assessment to determine the effectiveness of its risk management strategy and 
to identify new and emerging risks.
A Risk Management Committee has been appointed that advises management on the overall system of risk 
management, especially the mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk. The risk committee was dissolved with the 
resignation of the board on 10 November 2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
The NCGB does not have a separate Internal Control Unit due to budgetary constraints and the overall size of the 

entity. The finance unit are currently the custodians of internal controls within the entity.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
LDSW has been appointed as the Internal Auditors of the NCGB and are represented by the following Internal 
Audit Director:
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Mariance Du Toit ( CA (SA) –CAE) 

The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:

Name Qualifications
Internal or 
external

If internal, 
position in the 
public entity

Date 
appointed

Date 
Resigned

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

C OGU
CIA, Bsc. (Hons) and 
MTP

EXTERNAL: 
BOARDMEMBER N/A

30 September 
2012

10 Novem-
ber 2014 2

P OLYN
Municipal Finance, Fi-
nancial Management

EXTERNAL: 
BOARDMEMBER N/A

30 September 
2012

10 Novem-
ber 2014 2

K PACKIRISAMY

B. Sc, Higher Education 
Diploma (HED),  BCom 
(Hons) Quantitative 
Management

EXTERNAL: 
CFO:DEDAT N/A

30 September 
2012 n/a 1

R STADHOUER-
ANDREWS RGA (SAIGA) INTERNAL CFO: NCGB

30 September 
2013

31 August 
2014 2

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The NCGB has implemented all approved policies, procedures and regulations

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

The NCGB has a fraud prevention plan which includes mechanisms in place to report fraud and corruption. No 

case of fraud or corruption were reported for the financial period under review.

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A process has been implemented to minimize conflict of interest within the entity. A standardized conflict of 

interest declaration form has been developed and implemented for all employees and Board members to 

declare any possible conflict of interest.

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Code of Ethics (the Code) for staff of the NCGB is intended to provide guidance to staff with regard to the 

minimum standards of conduct expected from them and to support ethical and good business conduct of all 

employees.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Policies and Procedures still to be drafted and implemented for the management of Occupational Health and 

Safety.

BOARD SECRETARIAT (IF APPLICABLE)

The Legal Manager was appointed in July 2014 as the Board Secretariat.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Flamingo Casino has established the Northern Cape Provincial Trust. 

The following projects benefited from the Fund:

No.
 
SED Project

 
SED Category Amount Spent

1. Marokko Organic Gardens Community Development R 22 500

2. Sinothando Orphanage Community Development R 42 500
3. 3x Study Bursaries Education R 78 000
4. Staff SleepOut Health& Welfare R 25 000
5. Winter nights Health & Welfare R 74 300

6. Hunger & Thirst Health & Welfare R 10 200

Total awards for the quarter R252 500

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

There was no audit committee in place at year-end.
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Part D:  Human Resource Management
INTRODUCTION 
Overview of HR matters:

The staff compliment only has a few changes during the financial period under review with the vacancy of the 
CEO which was filled in July and resigned during March 2015 and that the position was vacant at the end of the 
financial period. The Chief Financial Officer and the legal manager position were appointed during the financial 
period under review.

Set HR priorities for the year under review and the impact of these priorities:

The NCGB has provided staff with the necessary support in terms of all Human Resource issues and Labour 
Relations queries. The HR Unit in addition also provided the Board with any necessary support and advice on all 
HR and Labour Relations queries.

Workforce planning framework and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce:

The CEO and all positions identified as critical will be advertised and appointments will be done in the new 
financial period.

Employee performance management framework:

The performance of staff was not evaluated and reviewed by Senior Management for this financial period under 
review. The previous Board, before they resigned, was in the process to review and convert the salary of the 
employees of the Board to the salary scale of the Public Service Sector. The Office of the Premier assisted the 
Board with the Job evaluation processes and the current Board will only receive and discuss the recommendation 
after they have settled.

Employee wellness programmes:

Programmes were identified by HR, but none could be implemented due to budgetary constraints.

Policy development:

The HR Policy was reviewed in the previous financial period. All draft Policies were submitted for Board’s approval. 

Highlight achievements:

Five positions has been filled



43

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Challenges faced by the public entity:
• There are a number of challenges faced by the NCGB in terms of Human Relations, Employee wellness as well 

as Continuous Professional Development. The NCGB are extremely understaffed.  Staff does not receive any 
Medical Aid contributions from the employer. Further none of the staff members has received any bursaries 
for CPD since appointment. 

• The scarcity of certain skills and the need for HR to work with individual programmes on plans to appoint these 
employees in the workforce where possible, and to develop succession planning techniques for individual 
work areas.

• The need to integrate HR Planning with other planning processes to ensure programme plans for the right mix 
of employee skills and abilities, and pro-actively take account for intended staff departures

• The need for development and implementation of significant leadership and management training 
programmes for all employees with supervisory responsibilities in order to prevent valuable employees from 
leaving the NCGB and ensure compliance with legislative and policy requirements.

• The need to maintain sound labour relations within the NCGB
• The need to promote and maintain the highest degree of physical, mental, social well-being in all occupations, 

preventing illness caused by working conditions, protecting employees in their employment from risks resulting 
from factors adverse to health and maintenance.

• The need to make reasonable accommodation of People with Disabilities, which is in line with the EE Act.
• The requirement for more vigorous performance management process, including feedback to senior 

managers, requiring HR to work with divisions in regards to training, support and feedback, particularly with 
regard to managing poor or under performance

• The need to enhance Organisational Performance, managing individual performances by implementing the 
Performance Managing System. 

• The need to improve the representation of women and other equity target groups in senior positions and key 
role areas across the NCGB through the development of a range of specific recruitment strategies and the 
provision of targeted support for career advancement

• The need to build the capacity of internal equity targeted groups that will create the readiness of these 
groups for positions whereby they will be able to participate in decision making. 

Future HR plans /goals:

The most crucial HR plan for the next financial period is Skills Development. The NCGB needs to provide training, 
workshops and courses to all of their employees. The NCGB needs to employ the necessary staff. To measure 
organisational and employee performance and succession  plan in line with the PMDS evaluation results.Facilitate 
the programmes that will assist employees in dealing with wellness issues.
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HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

Personnel cost by salary band

Level 
Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of personnel exp. 
to total personnel cost 
(R’000) No. of employees

Average personnel cost 
per employee (R’000)

Top Management 1394258.13 38.16 2 697 129.06

Senior Management 1062717.29 29.09 2 531 358.64

Professional qualified 837 366.77 22.92 8 104 670.84
Unskilled 358 769.15 9.82 4 89 692.28
TOTAL 3’653’111.34 100 16

Performance Rewards

Programme//activity/objective Performance rewards
Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000)

% of performance rewards  
to total personnel cost 
(R’000)

Top Management 0.00 0.00
Senior Management 0.00 0.00
Professional qualified 0.00 0.00
Skilled 0.00 0.00
Semi-skilled 0.00 0.00
Unskilled 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 0.00 0.00

Training Costs 

Programme//activity/objective

Personnel 
Expenditure 
(R’000)

Training Expenditure
(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure 
as a % of Per-
sonnel Cost.

No. of 
employees 
trained

Avg training  cost 
per employee

Gaming Inspectors Technical Skills 34 500.00 11500.00 3 11500.00
Total 34 500.00 11500.00 3 11500.00

Employment and vacancies

Programme/activity/
objective

2014/2015 
No. of 
Employees

2013/2014 
Approved 
Posts

2014/2015
No. of 
Employees

2014/2015 
Vacancies % of vacancies

CEO 1 2 1 1
BOARD 1 1 1 0
FINANCE 5 9 5 4
HR 1 2 1 1
LEGAL 1 1 1 0
GAMING CONTROL 6 9 6 3
LICENCING AND INVESTIGATION 1 7 1 6
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Programme/activity/
objective

2014/2015 
No. of 
Employees

2013/2014 
Approved 
Posts

2014/2015
No. of Employees

2014/2015 
Vacancies % of vacancies

Top Management 2 2 2 1
Senior Management 2 5 2 3
Professional qualified 6 17 6 11
Skilled 3 3 3 0
Semi-skilled
Unskilled 4 3 3 1
TOTAL 16 31 16 16

Employment changes

Salary Band
Employment at 
beginning of period Appointments Terminations 

Employment at 
end of the period

Top Management 2 0 1 1

Senior Management 2 0 0 2

Professional qualified 5 1 0 6

Skilled 3 0 0 3

Semi-skilled

Unskilled 4 1 1 4
Total 16 2 2 16

Reasons for staff leaving 
Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving
Death 0
Resignation 3
Dismissal 0
Retirement 0
Ill health 0
Expiry of contract 0
Other 0
Total 3

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary Action Number 
Verbal Warning 2
Written Warning 0
Final Written warning 0
Dismissal 0
Total 2
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Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

Levels
MALE

African Coloured Indian White
Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1
Senior Management 2 2     1
Professional qualified 1 1 1
Skilled 2 1
Semi-skilled
Unskilled 1
TOTAL 3 3 4 0 2 1 0 2

Levels
FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE
Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1
Senior Management 1 1
Professional qualified 3 1 1 1
Skilled 1
Semi-skilled
Unskilled 2 1
TOTAL 5 1 3 1 0 1 0 2

Levels Disabled Staff
Male Female
Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0
Senior Management 0 0
Professional qualified 0 1 0 1
Skilled 0 0
Semi-skilled 0 1 0 1
Unskilled 0 0
TOTAL 0 2 0 2
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REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

Report of the auditor-general to the Northern Cape Provincial Legislature on Northern 
Cape Gambling Board

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Northern Cape Gambling Board set out on pages xx to xx,

  which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of financial 

 performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well

 as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

  statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

 (SA Standards of GRAP). The basis of accounting, as set out in note 1 to the financial statements and the

  requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA)

  and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation

  of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted

 my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply  

 with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

  the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

  the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

 assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation

  and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

 in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

 internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and  

 the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall  

 presentation of the financial statements. 
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5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my   

 audit opinion.

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the   

 Northern Cape Gambling Board as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for   

 the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP. 

Emphasis of matter 

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Restatement of corresponding figures

8. As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2014 have   

 been restated as a result of an error discovered during the year ended 31 March 2015 in the financial   

 statements of the Northern Cape Gambling Board.

Irregular expenditure

9. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure to the amount of R2,2 million of   

 which R406 426 relates to the current financial period, was incurred as a result of procuring goods   

 and services without following the supply chain management regulations.

Additional matters 

10. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary schedules

11. The supplementary information set out on pages xx to xx do not form part of the financial statements   

 and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, we do  

 not express an opinion thereon.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice 

 issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information  

 against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, 

 non-compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable

 findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these

  matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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Predetermined objectives

13. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported    

 performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance   

 report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

 • Programme 1: Licensing and Investigations on pages x to x

 • Programme 2: Gambling Control on pages x to x

14. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

 

15. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented 

 in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the     

 reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to determine

 whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and

  relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance

  information (FMPPI).

16. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid,   

 accurate and complete.

Additional matters

17. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

 information for the selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

18. Refer to the annual performance report on page(s) x to x and x to x for information on the achievement  

 of the planned targets for the year.

Unaudited supplementary information

19. The supplementary information set out on pages x to x does not form part of the annual     

 performance  report and is presented as additional information. We have not audited these schedules   

 and, accordingly, we do not express a conclusion thereon.

Compliance with legislation

20. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with legislation regarding  

 financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-  

 compliance with  specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the

  PAA, are as follows:
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Procurement and contract management

21. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required

  price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

Expenditure management

22. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by

 section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

Internal control

23. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance

 report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal

  control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership

24. The entity had a number of vacancies throughout the year, which could lead to deficiencies concerning

  the business objectives of the entity. 

25. There were deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of compliance

  with applicable laws and regulations.

26. The entity did not have documented and approved internal policies and procedures to address the

  process of collecting, recording, processing, monitoring and reporting performance information. 

27. The entity did not have documented and approved internal policies and procedures to address the

  information technology processes.

Governance

28. The entity did not conduct a risk assessment, as required by the PFMA. Consequently, the following control 

 deficiencies were identified.

 • The risk register was not updated

 • The risk committee did not sit during the financial period

29. The audit committee did not function throughout the year. Members resigned before year end.

  Consequently, the audit committee did not meet before the submission of the financial statements 

 and annual performance report for auditing, to review the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the 

 financial statements and annual performance report.
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Auditor-General 

Kimberley

31 July 2015
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 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Legal form of entity Public Entity established in terms of the Northern Cape Gambling Act
No. 3 of 2008. The entity is a non - profit entity and is focused on
service delivery in the Northern Cape Province. The entity is listed in
the PFMA as a Schedule 3C - Public Entity.

Registered office 31 McDougall Street

Monument Heights

KIMBERLEY

8301

Executive Authority Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism
(MEC: J Block)

Bankers First National Bank

Chief Executive Officer WA Present (Acting)

Chief Financial Officer K Reed

Level of assurance These financial statements have been audited in compliance with the
applicable requirements of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1
of 1999.

Published 31 May 2015

Reporting Framework General Recognised Accounting Practise (GRAP), as issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB)

Relevant Legislation Northern Cape Gambling Act No. 3 of 2008

Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999

Skills Development Levies Act No. 9 of 1999

Employment Equity Act No. 9 of 1999

Unemployment Equity Act No. 30 of 1966

Basic Condition of Employment Act No. 75 of 1997

National Gambling Act No. 7 of 2004

Northern Cape Levies Act No. 4 of 2009

External Auditors Auditor General of South Africa

1
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Board's Responsibilities and Approval

The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records
and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all
financial records and related data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2016 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

Although the board is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the entity's external
auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the entity's external auditors and their report is presented on page 4.

The financial statements set out on pages 4 to 38, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, signed on behalf of
the board on 31 May 2015:

WA Present - Acting CEO

Kimberley

31 May 2015
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Board's Responsibilities and A pproval

The members are  required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) , to maintain adequate accounting records
and are  responsible for the content and integrity of the �nancial statements  and related �nancial information included in this
report. It is the responsibility of the members  to ensure that the �nancial statements  fairly present the state of a�airs of the
entity as at the end of the �nancial year and the results of its operations and cash �ows for the period then ended. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the �nancial statements  and was given unrestricted access to all
�nancial records and related data.

The �nancial statements  have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The �nancial statements  are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge  that they are  ultimately responsible for the system of internal �nancial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members  to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or de�cit in a cost e�ective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly de�ned framework, e�ective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. W hile operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The members are  of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the �nancial records may be relied on for the preparation of the �nancial
statements . However, any system of internal �nancial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or de�cit.

The members have  reviewed the entity’s cash �ow forecast for the year  to 31 March 2016  and, in the light of this review and
the current �nancial position, they are  satis�ed that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism  for continued funding
of operations. The �nancial statements  are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism  has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

Although the board is primarily responsible for the �nancial a�airs of the entity, they are supported by the entity's external
auditors.

The external auditors are  responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity's �nancial statements . The
�nancial statements  have been examined by the entity's external auditors  and their report is presented on page 4.

The �nancial statements  set out on pages 58 to 90, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, signed on behalf of
the board on 31 May 2015 :

WA Present - Acting CEO

Kimberley

31 May  2015
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Board's Report

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations

Net deficit of the entity was R 481,768 (2014: surplus R 189,467).

2. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2015, the entity had accumulated deficits of R (437,438) and that the entity's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R (437,438).

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

3. Subsequent events

On 01 April 2015 the MEC of the Department of Economic Development and Tourism elected 6 board members to serve as the
accounting authority of the entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act and the Northern Cape Gambling Act.

The members are as follows:

TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson)
E Benedict (Deputy Chairperson)
G Katz
T Oa Thobeli
C Hendricks

Subsequent to year end legal proceedings were insituted against the Northern Cape Gambling Board, due to an application by
a licensee to review a board decision, the case is currently pending before the High Court. The cost of the proceeding cannot
be reliably estimated as it is dependant on the duration of the court case as well as the Courts decision in terms of the costs.

A service provider was appointed subsequent to year end for an amount of R1 995 to waive SARS penalties and interest
charges amounting to R10 196. The penalties and interest charges due to SARS have been written off. 

4. Board

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Changes
AV Mjila (Chairperson) South African Resigned 10 November 2014
R April (Deputy Chairperson) South African Resigned 10 November 2014
C Ogu South African Resigned 10 November 2014
I Januarie South African Resigned 10 November 2014
P Olyn South African Resigned 10 November 2014

5. Auditors

Office of the Auditor General of South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period.

4
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Board's Report

6. Non-compliance with applicable legislation

Certain instances of non-compliance have been identified in terms of the following:

Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999

Section 51 (1)(b)(ii) - Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred;
Section 53 (4) - Expenditure was in excess of the approved budget;
Section 51 (1)(a)(ii) - The audit committee was not active for the last quarter of the financial year. 

Treasury Regulations, issued in terms of the above PFMA

TR 16A6.1 - Goods and services with a transaction below R500 000, was not procured in terms of requirements.

5
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Restated*

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 7 111,343 -

Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,315,361 3,027,330

3,426,704 3,027,330

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 113,415 153,290

Other financial asset 6 95,298 94,878

208,713 248,168

Total Assets 3,635,417 3,275,498

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 10 2,444,730 1,854,384

Finance lease obligation 9 41,515 69,719

Payables from exchange transactions 11 1,348,116 1,271,058

3,834,361 3,195,161

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 36,736 27,784

Operating lease liability 5 201,758 8,222

238,494 36,006

Total Liabilities 4,072,855 3,231,167

Net Assets (437,438) 44,331

Accumulated surplus (437,438) 44,331

* See Note 2 & 24
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services 21,069 -

Probity revenue 612,064 902,686

Interest received 130,096 61,278

Total revenue from exchange transactions 763,229 963,964

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Request for application revenue 20,000 -

Government grants & subsidies 8,380,000 7,580,000

Rental allocation 598,497 -

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 8,998,497 7,580,000

Total revenue 13 9,761,726 8,543,964

Expenditure

Personnel 16 (5,406,825) (4,788,719)

Remuneration of board members (427,134) (554,166)

Depreciation and amortisation (116,159) (100,554)

Finance costs 17 (9,539) (7,414)

Repairs and maintenance (2,189) (760)

General Expenses 15 (4,284,708) (2,897,255)

Total expenditure (10,246,554) (8,348,868)

Operating (deficit) surplus (484,828) 195,096

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities 3,060 -

(Deficit) surplus for the year (481,768) 195,096

* See Note 2 & 24
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand
Accumulated

surplus
Total net
assets

Opening balance as previously reported (130,749) (130,749)
Adjustments
Correction of errors (20,016) (20,016)

Balance at 01 April 2013 as restated* (150,765) (150,765)
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year (Restated) 195,096 195,096

Total changes 195,096 195,096

Balance at 01 April 2014 (Restated) 44,330 44,330
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year (481,768) (481,768)

Total changes (481,768) (481,768)

Balance at 31 March 2015 (437,438) (437,438)

* See Note 2 & 24
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Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014

Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Sale of goods and services 539,615 1,045,686

Grants and other receipts 8,998,497 7,580,000

Interest income 130,096 61,278

9,668,208 8,686,964

Payments

Employee cost and Board Remuneration (6,010,036) (5,080,977)

Suppliers (3,857,866) (2,550,625)

Finance costs (9,891) (7,392)

(9,877,793) (7,638,994)

Net cash flows from operating activities 19 (209,585) 1,047,970

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (83,065) (102,466)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4 10,005 -

Purchase of other financial assets (419) (94,878)

Net cash flows from investing activities (73,479) (197,344)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds of other financial liabilities 590,698 1,085,384

Finance lease payments (19,603) 38,295

Net cash flows from financing activities 571,095 1,123,679

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 288,031 1,974,305

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,027,330 1,053,025

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 3,315,361 3,027,330

* See Note 2 & 24
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Taxation revenue

Government grants & subsidies 7,880,000 500,000 8,380,000 8,380,000 -

Transfer revenue

Rental allocation - - - 598,497 598,497 Note 31, A

Total revenue from non-
exchange transactions

7,880,000 500,000 8,380,000 8,978,497 598,497

Expenditure

Personnel (4,205,588) (500,000) (4,705,588) (5,470,330) (764,742) Note 31, B

Remuneration of board
members

(920,000) - (920,000) (427,134) 492,866 Note 31, C

Repairs and maintenance (96,000) - (96,000) (2,189) 93,811 Note 31, D

General Expenses (4,230,000) - (4,230,000) (4,207,336) 22,664 Note 31, D

Total expenditure (9,451,588) (500,000) (9,951,588) (10,106,989) (155,401)

Deficit before taxation (1,571,588) - (1,571,588) (1,128,492) 443,096

Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

(1,571,588) - (1,571,588) (1,128,492) 443,096

Reconciliation

Basis difference

Adjustment in trade and other
payables 

111,763 Note 31, E

Income and expenditure not
included in budget 2014/15

657,761 Note 31, E

Adjustment in trade and other
receivables

(122,800) Note 31, E

Actual Amount in the
Statement of Financial
Performance

(481,768)
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts
on comparable

basis

Difference
between final
budget and

actual

Reference

Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment (20,000) - (20,000) (83,065) (63,065) Note 31, F

Total Assets (20,000) - (20,000) (83,065) (63,065)
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Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act
(Act 1 of 1999).

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 2 Changes in
accounting policy.

1.1 Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going
concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to
the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data
indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the entity is
the current bid price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.

Effective interest rate

The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.
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Accounting Policies

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
 the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination
of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair
value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life
Office equipment 6 - 10 years
IT equipment 2 - 5 years
Other property, plant and equipment 3 - 8 years
Leased Assets 2 - 5 years

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

13
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

 It is settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 cash;
 a residual interest of another entity; or
 a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

 equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as

forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net

assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

 the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
 are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
 derivatives;
 combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at
fair value at initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Other Financial Assets Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Finance lease liability Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Other Financial Liabilities Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value.
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
 Financial instruments at fair value.
 Financial instruments at amortised cost.
 Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price
and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Reclassification

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
 a combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly or by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service
the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to
be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the
servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation
for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognises the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses
are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expired or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers).

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.6 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the prime interest rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.7 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund
employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
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1.7 Employee benefits (continued)
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
 wages, salaries and social security contributions;
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.  The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.8 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
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1.8 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the transaction.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,
and

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.9 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arises when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
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1.9 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.

1.10 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.11 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.12 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as defined in section 1 of the PFMA, is expenditure which was made in vain and would
have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.13 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
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1.13 Irregular expenditure (continued)

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.

1.14 Budget information

Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2014/04/01 to 2015/03/31.

The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.

The financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the
statement of financial performance and the budget have been included in the financial statements. Refer to note 30.

Comparative information is not required.

1.15 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only
entities within the provincial sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such
functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

23



76

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2015 2014

2. Changes in accounting policy

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice on a
basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standard.

 GRAP 20, Related Parties

The adoption of the standard did not result in any retrospective changes to be made to the financial statements, as required by
GRAP 3.

3. New standards and interpretations

3.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

 GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2014 The adoption of GRAP 20
on Related Parties, will not
have a significant impact
on the financial statements
disclosure, as disclosure
was done in terms of
IPSAS 20, Related Parties
in the prior years.

3.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2015 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

 GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption
of the standard will be
significant to the annual
financial statements and
would require additional
disclosure to be made in
terms of the various
segments within the entity.

 GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under
common control

01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption
of this standard in future is
insignificant to the annual
financial statements of the
board.

 GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not
under common control

01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption
of this standard in future is
insignificant to the annual
financial statements of the
board.

 GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption
of this standard in future is
insignificant to the annual
financial statements of the
board.
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3. New standards and interpretations (continued)
 GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption

of this standard in future is
insignificant to the annual
financial statements of the
board.

 GRAP108: Statutory Receivables 01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption
of this standard in future is
insignificant to the annual
financial statements of the
board.

 IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements where a
Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset

01 April 2015 The impact of the adoption
of this standard in future is
insignificant to the annual
financial statements of the
board.

The aggregate impact of the initial application of the statements and interpretations on the entity's financial statements is
expected to be as follows:

4. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Office equipment 20,319 (6,925) 13,394 20,319 (4,023) 16,296
IT equipment 378,605 (285,037) 93,568 329,240 (200,907) 128,333
Other property, plant and
equipment

13,247 (6,794) 6,453 13,247 (4,586) 8,661

Total 412,171 (298,756) 113,415 362,806 (209,516) 153,290

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Office equipment 16,296 - - (2,902) 13,394
IT equipment 128,333 83,065 (6,945) (110,885) 93,568
Other property, plant and equipment 8,661 - - (2,208) 6,453

153,290 83,065 (6,945) (115,995) 113,415

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Opening
balance

Additions Depreciation Total

Office equipment 16,796 2,356 (2,856) 16,296
IT equipment 123,716 100,110 (95,493) 128,333
Other property, plant and equipment 10,869 - (2,208) 8,661

151,381 102,466 (100,557) 153,290

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

IT equipment 71,748 93,683
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

A register containing the information required by the Public Finance Management Act is available for inspection at the
registered office of the entity.

5. Operating lease liability

Non-current liabilities (201,758) (8,222)
Current liabilities - -

(201,758) (8,222)

The lease agreement was entered into on 15 March 2014 for a priod of 60 months, lease payments are to be made monthly in
advance. Lease payments escalates annualy with 8%.

Future minimum lease payments:

Year 1: R1 127 146 (2013/14: R1 146 121)
Year 2-5: R4 311 165 (2013/14: R5 438 311)

Reconciliation of lease payments made:

2014/15: R1 142 327 (actual lease payments); R193 536 (straight line lease adjustment); R1 335 863 (lease payments
expensed for the year)

2013/14: R47 439 (actual lease payments); R8 222 (straight line lease adjustment); R55 661 (lease payments expensed for the
year)

6. Other financial asset

The other financial asset comprise of a rental deposit paid for the lease agreement entered into for the premises currently
being occupied by the Northern Cape Gambling Board, R95 298 (2013: R94 878).

The lease agreement commenced on 15 March 2014 and per lease agreement the amount is refundable to the Northern Cape
Gambling Board, after the expiry date of 14 February 2019.

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of the other financial asset approximates it's fair value.

7. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade and other debtors 17,825 -
Employee overpayment 16,592 -
Prepaid rental (building) 76,926 -

111,343 -

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Ageing of Trade and other receivable from exchange transactions
0 - 30 days - current 111,343 -

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 111,343 -
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 3,315,361 3,027,330

9. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 46,843 75,343
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 42,826 28,948

89,669 104,291
less: future finance charges (11,418) (6,788)

Present value of minimum lease payments 78,251 97,503

Non-current liabilities 36,736 27,784
Current liabilities 41,515 69,719

78,251 97,503

It is entity policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases. 

The average lease term was 2 - 5 years and the interest rate applicable is linked to the prime interest rate.

The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 4.

10. Other financial liabilities

At amortised cost
Application and Renewal Fees due to Northern Cape Department of Economic
Development and Tourism

1,443,227 254,384

LPM Earmarked allocation due to the Northern Cape Department of Economic
Development and Tourism

1,001,503 1,600,000

2,444,730 1,854,384

Total other financial liabilities 2,444,730 1,854,384

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 2,444,730 1,854,384

Reconciliation of LPM earmarked funds

Opening balance 1,600,000 1,600,000
Rental allocation permitted to be offset against LPM earmarked allocation (598,497) -

Closing balance LPM earmarked funds 1,001,503 1,600,000
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11. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 194,968 70,024
Employee Benefits: Bonus and leave liability 212,933 258,126
Accrued staff expenditure 112,743 243,627
Probity fees received not utilised 827,472 699,281

1,348,116 1,271,058

Fair value of trade and other payables

Trade payables 1,348,116 1,271,058

The carrying amount of loans to and from shareholders are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 1,348,116 1,271,058

12. Financial instruments disclosure

Categories of financial instruments

2015

Financial assets

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial assets 95,298 95,298
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 111,343 111,343
Cash and cash equivalents 3,315,361 3,315,361

3,522,002 3,522,002

Financial liabilities

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial liabilities 2,444,730 2,444,730
Trade payables from exchange transactions 1,348,116 1,348,116
Finance leases 78,251 78,251

3,871,097 3,871,097
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. Financial instruments disclosure (continued)

2014

Financial assets

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial assets 94,878 94,878
Cash and cash equivalents 3,027,330 3,027,330

3,122,208 3,122,208

Financial liabilities

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial liabilities 1,854,384 1,854,384
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 1,271,058 1,271,058
Finance leases 97,503 97,503

3,222,945 3,222,945

13. Revenue

Rendering of services 21,069 -
Probity revenue 612,064 902,686
Interest received 130,096 61,278
Request for application revenue 20,000 -
Government grants & subsidies 8,380,000 7,580,000
Rental allocation 598,497 -

9,761,726 8,543,964

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Rendering of services 21,069 -
Probity revenue 612,064 902,686
Interest received 130,096 61,278

763,229 963,964

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Request for application revenue 20,000 -

Government grants & subsidies 8,380,000 7,580,000
Rental allocation 598,497 -

8,998,497 7,580,000

14. Government grants and subsidies

Government grant: Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 8,380,000 7,580,000
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15. General expenses

Accounting fees 34,707 353,772
Advertising 447,212 175,084
Auditors remuneration 454,347 435,921
Bank charges 2,725 5,808
Cleaning 160 31,476
Computer expenses 32,754 20,123
Consulting and professional fees 45,386 259,382
Consumables 7,122 -
Entertainment 10,932 55,752
Insurance 33,263 -
Conferences and seminars 31,487 -
Lease rentals on operating lease 1,335,862 502,914
Postage and courier - 580
Printing and stationery 149,126 64,533
Staff welfare - 900
Subscriptions and membership fees 5,494 303
Telephone and fax 118,378 57,411
Training 1,026 21,154
Travel and subsistence 1,533,422 851,086
Water, Electricity and other services 33,316 53,644
Investigation expenditure 7,989 7,412

4,284,708 2,897,255

30



83

1

1

NORTHERN CAPE GAMB LING BOARD

Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2015 2014

16. Employee related costs

Basic 2,544,138 2,165,261
Bonus 237,577 193,369
Acting allowances 74,901 186,447
Back - payment 2,894 195,498

2,859,510 2,740,575

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer

Annual Remuneration 661,831 140,577
Bonuses 55,153 -
Other Allowance 32,182 -
Leave payout - 70,527

749,166 211,104

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration 589,301 561,088
Bonuses 46,757 46,757
Back payment 3,588 -
Other Allowance 5,446 -

645,092 607,845

Remuneration of Legal Manager

Annual Remuneration 399,209 420,816
Bonuses 8,021 42,861
Other Allowance 10,396 -
Leave payout - 19,442
Acting allowance - 60,640

417,626 543,759

Remuneration of License Manager

Annual Remuneration 547,145 481,500
Bonuses 60,889 50,116
Acting Allowance 72,452 153,820
Back payment 3,079 -
Other Allowance 51,866 -

735,431 685,436

Total employee cost 5,406,825 4,788,719
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17. Finance costs

Finance leases 9,539 7,414

9,539 7,414

Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest rate, on financial instruments not at fair value through surplus or
deficit amounted to R 9,539 (2014: R 7,414).

18. Auditors' remuneration

Fees 308,683 321,585
Other Expenses 145,664 114,336

454,347 435,921

19. Cash (used in) generated from operations

(Deficit) surplus (481,768) 195,096
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 116,159 100,554
Loss on sale of assets and liabilities (3,060) -
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 193,371 8,222
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions (111,343) 143,000
Payables from exchange transactions 77,056 601,098

(209,585) 1,047,970

20. Commitments

Authorised operational expenditure

Already approved and contracted
 Operational Commitment - Internal Audit Services 461,449 607,113
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21. Contingencies

Daniel Visagie t/a Prieska Entertainment Centre:

The Northern Cape Gambling Board is a respondent in this matter. The matter is at the appeal stage. Should the action be
successsful the cost to the entity is estimated at R200 000.

CS Sleytler t/a Kuruman Entertainment Centre:
                          

The Northern Cape Gambling Board is a respondent in this matter. The matter is at the appeal stage. Should the action be
successsful the cost to the entity is estimated at R200 000.

ZS Mengo:

ZS Mengo is claiming for damages suffered due to an employment agreement entered into by him with the Northern Cape
Gambling Board and that did not materialize. Should the action be successsful the cost to the entity is estimated at R2 844
404.

Vengies Gaming Northern Cape / Northern Cape Gambling Board and others:

A review application, against a decision of the Board, was instituted against the Northern Cape Gambling Board in the Northern
Cape High Court. The cost of the proceeding cannot be reliably estimated as it is dependant on the duration of the court case
as well as the decision of the Court in terms of the costs.

Astra Travel:

There is a current dispute between the supplier and the Northern Cape Gambling Board with regards to an invoice amounting
to R18 117.
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22. Related parties

`

Relationships
Board Members with significant influence Refer to members' report note
Controlling Department with Significant Influence Northern Cape Department of Economic

Development and Tourism 
Members of key management C September (Chief Executive Officer 01 June 2014

to 27 March 2015)
R Stadhouer (Chief Financial Officer 01 April 2014 to
31 August 2014)
K Reed (Chief Financial Officer 01 November 2014 to
date)
WA Present (Legal Manager 01 July 2014 to date)
TJ Goeieman (Licensing Manager)

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (2,444,730) (1,854,384)
C September 16,592 -

Related party transactions

Remuneration paid to (received from) related parties
JJ Bobeje - 211,103
R Stadhouer 366,119 607,485
A Pietersen Hendricks - 543,759
TJ Goeieman 735,430 685,436
WA Present 417,624 -
K Reed 278,973 -
C September 749,166 -

Travel claims paid to (received from) related parties
WA Present 1,935 -
C September 26,229 -
A Pietersen Hendricks - 326
TJ Goeieman 50,089 74,933
AV Mjila 22,120 49,241
R April 12,858 22,505
C Ogu 37,273 27,614
I Januarie 69,527 95,249
P Olyn 49,584 47,378

Sitting fees and other work paid to (received from) related parties
AV Mjila 94,105 197,279
R April 45,640 34,023
C Ogu 71,148 90,318
I Januarie 95,830 114,710
P Olyn 120,515 117,866

Grants and application fees paid to (or received from) related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (Grant Received) (8,380,000) (7,580,000)
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (Application and
renewal fees paid over)

205,000 975,868

Northern Cape Department of Economic Development: Rental Allocation received (598,497) -

The Northern Cape Gambling Board makes use of assets belonging to the Northern Cape Department of Economic
Development and Tourism. 

The assets are utilised by the entity at no charge.
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23. Sitting fees and Remuneration paid - Board Members

Board Members

2015

Sitting Fees Work done Total
AV Mjila (Chairperson) 73,810 20,295 94,105
R April (Deputy Chairperson) 43,000 2,536 45,536
C Ogu 55,848 15,300 71,148
I Januarie 58,100 37,730 95,830
P Olyn 80,325 40,190 120,515

311,083 116,051 427,134

2014

Sitting Fees Work done Total
AV Mjila (Chairperson) 175,567 21,712 197,279
R April (Deputy Chairperson) 30,567 3,456 34,023
C Ogu 74,218 16,100 90,318
I Januarie 83,200 31,510 114,710
P Olyn 86,728 31,107 117,835

450,280 103,885 554,165

24. Prior period errors

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions, exchange revenue and operating expenditure increased. The increase
in expenditure resulted in an increase in receivables, as the expenditure relates to probity expenditure, to be recovered from
probity fees to be received. The adjustments have been made retrospectively in terms of GRAP 3.

Property, plant and equipment decreased with the derecognition of several asset items transferred in prior years, this resulted
in adjustments to depreciation and the accumulated deficit balance previously reported. 

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions - (4,814)
Accumulated deficit 01 April 2013 - 20,016
Property, plant and equipment - (9,571)

Statement of Financial Performance
Depreciation and amortisation - (10,445)
Probity revenue - (2,714)
General expenditure - 7,531

25. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.

Reclassifications in the statement of financial position took place as follows: Included under trade and other payables from non-
exchange transactions was R701 996 due to the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism, this
amount has been reclassified and is now classified as part of trade and other paybales from exchange transactions. The origin
of the the balance consist of probity fees received in advance and to be used in future to cover probity expenditure. 

The operating lease liability, R8 222, was previously disclosed as part of current liabilities, the liability will only be distinguished
in future years and is therefore classified as part of non-current liabilities.

The effects of the reclassification are as follows:
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25. Comparative figures (continued)

Statement of financial position
Trade and other payables from Exchange Transactions - (701,996)
Trade and other payables from Non-Exchange transactions - 701,996
Operating lease liability, Non-current liability - (8,222)
Operating lease liability, Current liability - 8,222

26. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprises rental expenditure paid in advance and rental deposits held. Sales to customers are settled in
cash.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

`

Financial instrument 2015 2014
Receivables from exchange transactions 111,343 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,315,361 3,027,330
Other financial assets 95,298 94,878

Market risk

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk

`

Financial instrument Current
interest rate

Due in less
than a year

Due in one to
two years

Due in two to
three years

Due in three
to four years

Due after five
years

Trade and other receivables -
normal credit terms

%- 111,343 - - - -

Cash in current banking
institutions

%- 3,315,361 - - - -

Other financial liabilities %- (2,444,730) - - - -
Payables from exchange
transactions

%- (1,348,116) - - - -

Other financial assets %- - - - 95,298 -
Finance lease liabilities %9.50 (41,515) (36,736) - - -

27. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2015, the entity had accumulated deficits of R (437,438) and that the entity's
total liabilities exceed its assets by R (437,438).
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27. Going concern (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

28. Events after the reporting date

On 01 April 2015 the MEC of the Department of Economic Development and Tourism elected 6 board members to serve as the
accounting authority of the entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act and the Northern Cape Gambling Act.

The members are as follows:

TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson)
E Benedict (Deputy Chairperson)
G Katz
T Oa Thobeli
C Hendricks

Subsequent to year end legal proceedings were insituted against the Northern Cape Gambling Board, due to an application by
a licensee to review a board decision, the case is currently pending before the High Court. The cost of the proceeding cannot
be reliably estimated as it is dependant on the duration of the court case as well as the Courts decision in terms of the costs.

A service provider was appointed subsequent to year end for an amount of R1 995 to waive SARS penalties and interest
charges amounting to R10 196. The penalties and interest charges due to SARS have been written off. 

29. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 87 7,384
Expenditure - current year 586 87
Recovered from Entity Official - (7,384)

673 87

Interest paid on the late submission of returns and or payments to SARS and Telkom R586 (2013/14: R87).

Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure due to an international trip undertaken during 2014/15, amounting to R680 538, is
currrently under investigation.
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30. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 1,814,666 1,753,143
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 406,426 61,523

2,221,092 1,814,666

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Three quotations and tax clearance certificates
not obtained as per the requirements of Treasury
Regulations

Investigation in progress 406,426

The comparative amounts for irregular expenditure have been restated, due to an investigation into the expenditure resulting in
the removal of items which were previously incorrectly classified as irregular expenditure.

31. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

A) Rental Allocation: The increase in funds received were due to earmarked funds received from the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism, to cover the increase in rental expenditure for the 2014/15 year.

              
B) Personnel cost: The overspending in the personnel cost budget due to higher salaries paid than originally budget

C) Board remuneration: The underspending in board remuneration is due to the resignation of the board during the year.

D) General expenditure: The board members of the entity resigned during November 2014 and not all planned expenditure was
incurred by the entity.

E) Adjustments are made in the actual income and expenditure, as the entities budget and basis of accounting differs, basis
difference are due to income and expenditure recorded, which have not been included in the budget of the entity.

F) The overspending in capital additions is due to finance lease assets being capitalised in order to comply with the reporting
framework.
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